



SPONSOR: Sen. Townsend & Sen. Delcollo & Rep. Bentz & Rep. Baumbach  
Sens. Cloutier, Hansen, Hocker, Paradee, Poore, Richardson, Sokola; Reps. Jaques, K. Johnson, Kowalko, Osienski, Seigfried, D. Short, Michael Smith

DELAWARE STATE SENATE  
150th GENERAL ASSEMBLY

SENATE BILL NO. 121

AN ACT TO AMEND TITLE 15 OF THE DELAWARE CODE RELATING TO ELECTIONS.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE (Two-thirds of all members elected to each house thereof concurring therein):

1 Section 1. Amend § 101, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
2 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

3 § 101. Definitions.

4 As used in this title:

5 (9) "Election officers" means the inspector of election, the 2 judges of election and the clerks of election who  
6 are appointed for each election district under ~~§ 4701~~ § 4702 of this title.

7 Section 2. Amend § 2049, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
8 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

9 § 2049. Change of party designation; procedure.

10 (a) Any duly registered voter may apply to change that registered voter's political affiliation by completing and  
11 submitting a voter registration application to the Department except in the year of a general election during the period from  
12 the last Saturday in May through the day of the primary election. The application shall be upon a form provided by the  
13 Commissioner and shall be signed by the registrant and returned by mail or delivered to the ~~office of the Department.~~  
14 Department. An appropriately addressed envelope shall be supplied by the Department for return of the executed  
15 application. Upon receipt of the executed application, the Department shall cause the signature to be compared with the  
16 original registration record of such applicant, and if such signature appears to be the same, such change of affiliation shall  
17 be made ~~on the original and duplicate in the voter registration records~~ in the voter registration records and the applicant shall be immediately ~~notified by~~  
18 ~~mail of the change so made.~~ notified. If the Department is not satisfied as to the signature on the application, the applicant  
19 shall be notified by mail to appear at any office of the Department to answer under oath such questions as may be deemed  
20 necessary. ~~If the applicant fails to appear as notified, no such change of affiliation shall be made. If the application is made~~  
21 ~~to the registration officers, they shall forward the completed application to the Department at the same time as they forward~~

22 other registration records at the close of registration, and the Department shall cause appropriate notations thereof to be  
23 made upon the applicant's registration record in the applicable County Master File and the applicant's record in the Election  
24 System data base.

25 Section 3. Amend § 3002, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
26 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

27 § 3002. Unaffiliated candidates.

28 (a) No person shall qualify to appear on the general election ballot of this State as a candidate unaffiliated with a  
29 political party unless such person fulfills the requirements of this chapter and is so certified by the ~~Department of Elections~~  
30 State Election Commissioner, if a statewide candidate, or the Department of Elections, office for the county where the  
31 candidate resides, if not a statewide candidate.

32 (b) No individual shall be listed as an unaffiliated candidate on any general election ballot unless such individual  
33 shall have ~~filed,~~ filed on forms promulgated by the State Election Commissioner, on or before the close of the official  
34 business day on September 1 of the general election year, a sworn declaration with the State Election Commissioner, if a  
35 statewide candidate, or the ~~Department,~~ Department office for the county where the candidate resides, if a nonstatewide  
36 candidate, stating that the ~~nonstatewide candidate is an unaffiliated candidate and~~ candidate has not been affiliated with  
37 any political party for at least 3 months prior to the filing of the declaration, as required by this ~~title,~~ title. By September 1  
38 of a general election year, the candidate and shall have filed shall file nominating petitions, as prescribed in this chapter,  
39 ~~and~~ signed by not less than ~~4 percent~~ 1% of the total number of voters registered, as of December 31 of the year  
40 immediately preceding the general election year in the State, or if a nonstatewide candidate, of those voters eligible  
41 registered to vote for that office which such individual seeks.

42 Section 4. Amend § 3106, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
43 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

44 § 3106. Filing of candidacy for nomination at a primary election; withdrawal.

45 (a) Any person desiring to be a candidate shall give notice in the following manner:

46 (2) Candidates for all other offices:

47 a. All candidates for county or countywide office, members of the General ~~Assembly and/or~~ Assembly, or  
48 municipal office for any municipality holding its election at the time of the general election shall notify the county  
49 chair, or the county chair's designee, in ~~writing (or~~ writing, or the city chair, or the city chair's designee, if  
50 applicable for municipal ~~and candidates)~~ candidates, of their respective political party in their county of residence on

51 forms prescribed by the State Election Commissioner on or before the deadline ~~set forth in~~ under § 3101(1) of this  
52 title.

53 b. At the time of giving notice as required ~~above~~, under paragraph (a)(2) of this section, each candidate  
54 shall tender the required filing fee, if any, by giving a check to the ~~Department~~, Department office for the county  
55 in which the candidate resides, payable to the county committee of the candidate's political ~~party (or party, or city~~  
56 ~~committee, if applicable for municipal candidates)~~, candidates, together with a copy of the notice given to the  
57 party chair. At such time, the Department office shall receipt a ~~third~~ copy of the ~~notice, to be provided~~ notice to the  
58 candidate.

59 (b) If any of the filing fees mentioned in subsection (a) of this section are not required, each candidate shall still  
60 give notice to ~~the election agency having jurisdiction~~, the Department office for the county in which the candidate resides,  
61 as specified in paragraphs (a)(1) and (2) of this section, and ~~shall receive a receipted copy of the prescribed form.~~ the  
62 Department office shall receipt a copy of the notice to the candidate.

63 (c) Any candidate who has filed for nomination as ~~required above~~ under subsection (a) or (b) of this section may  
64 withdraw ~~said~~ the filing by notifying the ~~respective elections agency with whom that~~ Department office with which the  
65 candidate filed on forms prescribed by the State Election Commissioner on or before the deadline ~~set forth in~~ under §  
66 3101(2) of this title. ~~The elections agency having jurisdiction~~ The Department office for the county in which the candidate  
67 resides shall promptly notify the same political party chair who received the original notice of filing. The political party  
68 shall return the candidate's filing fee of the candidate so withdrawing shall be returned to the candidate. fee. ~~In the event~~ If  
69 a candidate withdraws after the deadline ~~set forth in~~ under § 3101(2) of this title, ~~such~~ the candidate shall forfeit the filing  
70 fee to the political party. ~~In cases where no filing fee was required, any candidate withdrawing after the deadline shall~~  
71 ~~submit to the respective elections agency a check payable to the Treasurer of the State in the amount of \$50.~~

72 Section 5. Amend § 3124, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
73 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

74 § 3124. Ballots for voting ~~machines.~~ devices.

75 (a) The Department shall cause to be ~~printed~~ created the ballots to be used in any primary ~~election and shall cause~~  
76 ~~the same to be placed in voting machines for the proper district prior to the delivery of the voting machines.~~ election.

77 (b) The names of all candidates for nomination for the same office ~~shall~~ must be placed under the title of ~~such~~ the  
78 office, the surname of candidates to be placed in alphabetical order, and ~~shall~~ may not be separated one from another by any  
79 other matter.

80 Section 6. Amend § 3125, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
81 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

82 § 3125. Department to furnish voting ~~machines,~~ devices, flags, ~~supplies~~ supplies, and instructions for polling  
83 places.

84 For each polling place, the Department shall furnish all of the following:

85 (1) A flag or poster of suitable size for lettering thereon in at least 3-inch letters with the words POLLING  
86 ~~PLACE;~~ PLACE.

87 (2) A flag of the United States of America no smaller in size than the polling place flag ~~above described in~~  
88 under paragraph (1) of this section; section.

89 (3) Poll list, ~~stationery~~ stationary, and other such supplies customary and necessary for the use of the officers  
90 conducting such primary ~~election;~~ election.

91 (4) Written instructions and excerpts from those parts of this title as the Department ~~shall deem~~ deems  
92 necessary and appropriate to assist the election officers in the proper performance of ~~their duties;~~ the officers' duties.

93 (5) A proper number of voting ~~machines-devices~~ of the type used in general elections, which ~~machines shall~~  
94 devices must be duly inspected, ~~prepared~~ prepared, and certified ~~in the same manner as provided for under Chapter 50~~  
95 Chapter 50A of this title for general elections.

96 Section 7. Amend § 3126, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
97 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

98 § 3126. Voting to be by voting ~~machines.~~ devices.

99 In every primary election district in which a primary election is to be held under this chapter, voting ~~machines~~  
100 devices of the type used in general elections, as provided for in ~~Chapter 50 or~~ Chapter 50A of this title, ~~shall~~ must be used  
101 to record the votes, and the manner of voting ~~shall~~ must be the same as that set forth in Chapter 49 of this title.

102 Section 8. Amend § 3172, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
103 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

104 § 3172. Calculation of votes; ties.

105 (a) The Department shall forthwith calculate the total number of votes cast for each candidate in any contest and  
106 certify the candidate or candidates receiving the highest number of votes. ~~In cases of statewide contests, the Department~~  
107 ~~shall report the results to the State Election Commissioner.~~

108 (e) ~~In the event that~~ If the number of votes separating a candidate and the closest opposing candidate in a primary  
109 election is less than ~~1,000~~ (in 1,000 votes, in the case of a statewide contest) ~~votes-contest,~~ or 1/2 of ~~1 percent~~ (in the case

110 ~~of any contest~~ 1% of all votes cast for the 2 candidates, in the case of any other contest, whichever is less; less, the  
111 Department shall recount the ~~absentee~~ ballots cast in that election at State expense as part of the canvass of the vote.

112 Section 9. Amend § 3301, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
113 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

114 § 3301. Certificates of nomination.

115 (d) The presiding officer and secretary of the county committee of each political party eligible to place candidates  
116 on the ballot shall submit a certificate of nomination for candidates for the General ~~Assembly, Assembly and~~ county and  
117 municipal offices to the ~~Department; Department~~ office for the county in which the candidate resides, as follows:

118 (1) For any office for which no candidate has filed in accordance with § 3101 of this ~~title, or title.~~

119 (2) For any office for which candidates are selected by the state nominating convention of a minor political  
120 party.

121 (e) ~~In the case of~~ For minor political parties not required to select candidates ~~pursuant to~~ under Chapter 31 of this  
122 title, each party shall select ~~their~~ its candidates at the party's state or county nominating convention held on or before  
123 August 1 in the year of a general election and shall file the certificates of nomination of the selected candidates within 10  
124 business days of the nominating convention.

125 (h) The State Election Commissioner shall verify that the nominations of candidates submitted to the State  
126 Election Commissioner and the eligibility of each political party to make such nominations conform to the requirements ~~set~~  
127 ~~forth in~~ under this title. The Department offices shall do the same concerning certificates of nomination submitted to ~~it; the~~  
128 offices.

129 (i) The State Election Commissioner shall forthwith send a copy of each certificate of nomination submitted to the  
130 Commissioner to the ~~Department; Department~~ offices. The Department offices shall forthwith send a copy of each  
131 certificate of nomination submitted to ~~it~~ the offices to the State Election Commissioner.

132 Section 10. Amend § 3303, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
133 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

134 § 3303. Time of filing certificates.

135 Certificates of nomination for statewide office to be filed with the State Election ~~Commissioner or the Department,~~  
136 Commissioner, and certificates of nominations for nonstatewide offices to be filed with the Department office for the  
137 county where the nominee resides, as the case may be, ~~shall~~ must be filed before the close of the official business day on or  
138 before September 1 of the year of any general election, and if September 1 is a Sunday or legal holiday, then on the next  
139 official business day. Certificates of nomination ~~shall~~ must be on the form specified by the State Election Commissioner.

140 However, when there is a national nominating convention, the nominees from ~~said the~~ national nominating convention ~~shall~~  
141 must be named on a certificate of nomination to be filed before 12:00 noon on the earlier ~~of~~ of the following:

142 (1) The Tuesday following ~~said the~~ national nominating ~~convention; or, convention.~~

143 (2) September 15 of ~~said the~~ election year.

144 Section 11. Amend § 3402, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
145 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

146 § 3402. Write-in candidates for a general election.

147 (c) A person shall declare ~~himself or herself~~ as a write-in candidate for an office by filing a Write-in Candidate  
148 Declaration with the State Election Commissioner for a statewide office or ~~to the Department of Elections office~~ for the  
149 county in which the election is to be held for General Assembly, ~~county~~ county, or City of Wilmington offices no later than  
150 4:30 p.m. on September ~~30~~ 20 in the year of a general election. If September ~~30~~ 20 is a Saturday, ~~Sunday~~ Sunday, or  
151 holiday, the declaration ~~shall~~ must be filed no later than 4:30 p.m. on the next day that is not a Saturday, ~~Sunday~~ Sunday, or  
152 holiday. If the boundary of a General Assembly office includes more than 1 county, the person shall file that person's  
153 Write-in Candidate Declaration with the Department ~~of Elections office~~ for the county in which that person is a registered  
154 voter.

155 (d) The State Election Commissioner or ~~the Department of Elections for a county~~ Department office for the county  
156 in which a person who has filed a Write-in Candidate Declaration is a registered voter shall determine whether ~~a the~~ person  
157 ~~who has filed a Write-in Candidate Declaration~~ is eligible to be a candidate for the office for which ~~that the~~ person has filed  
158 ~~the declaration.~~ Declaration.

159 Section 12. Amend § 3403, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
160 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

161 § 3403. Forms.

162 The State Election ~~Commissioner~~ Commissioner, in collaboration with the ~~Departments of Elections for the~~  
163 ~~counties~~ Department offices, shall promulgate the Write-in Candidate Declaration and the withdrawal form.

164 Section 13. Amend § 3404, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
165 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

166 § 3404. Write-in candidate lists.

167 Each ~~department of elections~~ Department office shall issue at least 2 copies of the list of declared write-in  
168 candidates for each office on a ballot in the county to the election officers at each election district in the county. The  
169 election officers shall post 1 copy of the list in a conspicuous location in the polling place.

170 Section 14. Amend § 4502, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
171 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

172 § 4502. Form and designation of ballots.

173 (a)(1) For each election, the party emblem adopted by each political party and its name shall appear on the ballot  
174 with the names of its candidates, arranged in line with the titles of the offices for which they are contesting, along with  
175 space for the voter to write in the name of any candidate of that voter's choice, as prescribed ~~in § 5005(b)~~ under § 5005A(b)  
176 of this title.

177 (2) In those years in which a President and ~~Vice-President~~ Vice President of the United States are to be  
178 ~~elected~~ elected, the ballot ~~shall~~ must be designated "Presidential, ~~Vice-Presidential~~ Vice Presidential, State, ~~County~~  
179 County, and District Ballot"; in other ~~years~~ years, the ballot ~~shall~~ must be designated "State, ~~County~~ County, and  
180 District Ballot".

181 (3) The names of all candidates of any party ~~shall~~ must be placed under the title and device of such party as  
182 designated in the certificate filed with the ~~department of elections by such~~ Department by the party's authorized agent  
183 ~~or agents~~ or, if none is designated, under some suitable title or device to be selected by the ~~department of elections.~~  
184 Department.

185 (4) When a President and ~~Vice-President~~ Vice President are to be elected, the names of the candidates for  
186 those offices ~~shall~~ must be placed at the top of the list of candidates for all offices to be voted upon.

187 (5) The device named and chosen and the lists of candidates of the Democratic Party ~~shall~~ must be placed in  
188 the first column on the left-hand side of the ballot, of the Republican Party in the second column, and of any other  
189 party, and the space for the voter to write in the name of any candidate of that voter's choice for any office, in such  
190 order as the ~~department of elections shall decide.~~ Department decides.

191 (6) The names of unaffiliated candidates ~~shall~~ must appear in alphabetical order, under the heading  
192 "Unaffiliated Candidates", after the listing of various political parties.

193 Section 15. Amend § 4503, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
194 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

195 § 4503. ~~Printing~~ Creating ballots.

196 The Department shall ~~print or cause to be printed~~ create the ballots to be used in the voting ~~machines~~ devices and  
197 print or cause to have printed sufficient absentee ballots for any election conducted by the Department under the provisions  
198 of this title.

199 Section 16. Amend § 4505, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
200 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

201 § 4505. Substitution of candidate's name after ~~printing~~ creation of ballots.

202 Whenever a supplemental certificate of nomination is filed naming a substitute candidate, as elsewhere provided in  
203 this title, the Department shall promptly provide new ~~ballots or, if necessary, pasters~~. ~~If the new ballots or pasters are~~  
204 ~~received by the Department too late to put them in the voting machines prior to the preparation, sealing and inspection of~~  
205 ~~the machines, then the department shall deliver the necessary number of pasters to the inspectors of the appropriate election~~  
206 ~~districts, who shall see to it that the pasters are placed and maintained on the voting machines and certificates of election.~~  
207 ballots, if there is sufficient time before the election, or take other appropriate measures if there is insufficient time before  
208 the election to provide new ballots.

209 Section 17. Amend § 4506, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
210 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

211 § 4506. Tally sheets.

212 ~~The Department shall furnish 2 copies of write-in vote tally sheets for each election district. [Repealed.]~~

213 Section 18. Amend Title 15 of the Delaware Code by transferring § 4516 of Title 15 to Chapter 80 of Title 15,  
214 redesignating § 4516 as Section 8045A of Title 15.

215 Section 19. Amend § 4701, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
216 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

217 § 4701. Appointment; term.

218 ~~(a) The county executive committee of each of the 2 principal political parties shall submit to the Department no~~  
219 ~~later than February 1 of each general election year a list containing the names of 8 registered voters for each election district~~  
220 ~~in the county. The Department shall appoint all election officers, including clerks, from these lists; provided, however, that~~  
221 ~~if the lists are not filed with the Department by February 1 or if the number of names submitted are not sufficient, the~~  
222 ~~Department shall select, notwithstanding paragraphs (b)(1) and (2) of this section, some qualified person or persons shown~~  
223 ~~on its records to be registered to vote in the election district (or in the absence of such persons, the representative district),~~  
224 ~~provided that no more than a bare majority of such persons are members of the same political party.~~

225 ~~(1) The county executive committee of each of the 2 principal political parties may nominate Delaware~~  
226 ~~citizens who are full-time students and who will be at least 16 years of age on or before November 1 in the year of a~~  
227 ~~general election and who will be less than 18 years of age on or before the day of the general election to serve as clerks~~  
228 ~~of election. Such nominations shall be accompanied by an authorization signed by the person's parent or guardian as~~



229 well as the principal of the school the student attends. The authorization shall be on a form promulgated by the State  
230 Election Commissioner. The Department may recruit United States citizens who are full-time students and who will be  
231 at least 16 years of age on or before November 1, in the year of a general election and who will be less than 18 years of  
232 age on or before the day of the general election to serve as clerks of election. Persons recruited by the Department shall  
233 present an authorization, on the form promulgated by the State Election Commissioner, to the Department prior to  
234 being appointed. Notwithstanding any law or regulation to the contrary, the Department may appoint no more than 2  
235 persons under the age of 18 as clerks in any Election District where 2 or fewer voting machines are assigned. In  
236 Election Districts where 3 or more voting machines are assigned, 1 person under the age of 18 may be appointed as a  
237 clerk for each voting machine assigned. Persons nominated by a political party on or before February 1 in the year of a  
238 general election shall be given priority over persons recruited by the Department unless such persons demonstrate that  
239 they are unable or unwilling to perform election officer duties. The State Election Commissioner, after consultation and  
240 coordination with the Department, shall promulgate the nomination form for the purpose of this subsection no later  
241 than January 1, 2004.

242 (2) Notwithstanding any law or regulation to the contrary, the Department may appoint Delaware residents  
243 who are registered voters and who are enrolled as at least half-time students in colleges or universities within the  
244 respective county as election officers for that county. College or university students recruited by the Department and  
245 who will be less than 18 years of age on or before the day of the general election shall present an authorization signed  
246 by a faculty member or dean of the school they attend, on the form promulgated by the State Election Commissioner,  
247 to the Department prior to being appointed.

248 (b)(1) During the month of April in each general election year, the Department shall appoint for each election  
249 district in its county 1 inspector, 2 judges of election, 1 from each of the 2 principal political parties; and 2 clerks of  
250 election, 1 from each of the 2 principal political parties, provided that where the election district has fewer than 100 voters  
251 of a principal political party, the Department may appoint such party's clerk or clerks of election from a different election  
252 district within the same representative district. The terms of the inspectors, judges, and clerks of election shall extend from  
253 the day of their appointment to April 1 of the next general election year.

254 (2) Whenever an election district is to be provided more than 1 voting machine, 2 additional clerks, 1 from  
255 each principal political party, shall be appointed for each additional voting machine. These additional appointments  
256 shall be made in April whenever the number of additional voting machines is known to the department. Subsequent  
257 additional appointments shall be made as soon as practicable after the department determines the need for additional  
258 voting machines in an election district. [Repealed.]

259 Section 20. Amend § 4702, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
260 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

261 § 4702. Appointment of ~~additional~~ election officers.

262 The Department may appoint ~~such additional~~ election officers to serve as ~~machine operators, greeters or for other~~  
263 ~~purposes deemed necessary to facilitate the operation of polling places.~~ in the polling places.

264 Section 21. Amend § 4902, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
265 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

266 § 4902. Absence of election officer on election day; notice to ~~department.~~ Department.

267 If on the day of holding an election any election officer authorized by law to serve at the election in any election  
268 district ~~shall be~~ is absent from the place of election at 7:00 a.m., the inspector, if present, or, in the absence of the inspector,  
269 then any judge who may be present, shall immediately notify the Department office in that inspector's or judge's county of  
270 ~~such~~ the absence.

271 Section 22. Amend § 4910, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
272 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

273 § 4910. Instruction sheets; sample ballots.

274 (a) The State Election Commissioner, in collaboration with the ~~Department,~~ Department offices, shall design a  
275 poster or posters that ~~will be~~ is uniform throughout the State. The poster or posters ~~shall~~ must be publicly displayed in each  
276 polling place on the day of the election. The poster or posters ~~shall~~ must contain all of the following information:

277 (1) Information stating the date and hours during which the polling place will be ~~open;~~ open.

278 (2) Instructions on how to vote, including how to cast a vote and how to cast a provisional ~~ballot;~~ ballot.

279 (3) A statement on the importance of verifying that the markings on the voting device-printed paper ballot  
280 reflect the voter's intended choices, and instructions on what steps to take if the paper ballot does not reflect the voter's  
281 actual choices.

282 (3) (4) Instructions for mail-in registrants who are first-time voters under § 303(b) of the Help America Vote  
283 Act of 2002 [~~52 U.S.C. § 21083(b);~~ 52 U.S.C. § 21083(b)].

284 (4) (5) General information on voting rights under applicable federal and state laws, including information on  
285 the right of an individual to cast a provisional ballot and instructions on how to contact the appropriate officials if these  
286 rights are alleged to have been ~~violated;~~ and violated.

287 (5) (6) General information on federal and state laws regarding prohibitions on acts of fraud and  
288 misrepresentation.

289 Section 23. Amend § 4912, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
290 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

291 § 4912. Procedure prior to opening of polls.

292 (a) The election officers of each election district shall ~~attend~~ arrive at the polling place ~~three quarters of an 1~~ hour  
293 before the time set for opening of the polls and shall ~~proceed to arrange the furniture, stationery and voting machine~~  
294 prepare the polling place for the conduct of the election. ~~If not previously collected, the election officers shall collect from~~  
295 ~~the department of elections a list of voters who have voted by absentee ballot and shall maintain the same at the polling~~  
296 ~~place. The election officers shall~~ ~~cause to be posted~~ post conspicuously within the polling place an instruction poster and 2  
297 sample ballots. ~~They shall see that the light for the voting machine is in good order and that it is lighted, if that is necessary,~~  
298 ~~in order that the names upon the ballot shall be clearly visible. They shall inspect the screen, hood or curtain of the machine~~  
299 ~~to make certain that it has not been damaged or tampered with so as in any manner to lessen or endanger the secrecy of~~  
300 ~~voting. They shall see to it that no mirror is placed or allowed to remain in such a position so as to permit a view of any part~~  
301 ~~of the front, sides or top of the voting machine.~~

302 (b) ~~The 2 voting machine certificates shall be delivered to the election officers at least three quarters of an hour~~  
303 ~~before the time set for the opening of the polls. Section 1 of the voting machine certificates shall list the serial number,~~  
304 ~~ballot number, machine case seal number, printer door number and the protective counter number for each voting machine~~  
305 ~~assigned to the election district. Each election officer shall witness and verify that the numbers listed on the voting machine~~  
306 ~~certificates are the same as the voting machine serial number, machine case seal number, printer door seal number, ballot~~  
307 ~~number and protective counter number on the voting machine. If a number is different, the inspector shall strike through the~~  
308 ~~number, enter the appropriate correction and initial the entry on each of the certificates. At the completion of this~~  
309 ~~comparison, each election officer shall sign in the appropriate place in section 1 of each of the voting machine certificates.~~  
310 The election officers shall verify that the correct devices are in the polling place and that the serial numbers match the  
311 numbers on the certificate provided by the Department. The election officers shall report any irregularities with the devices  
312 to the Department office in the county where the voting device is located.

313 (c) The election officers shall observe the opening of the polls procedure for each voting machine assigned to the  
314 election district. device and ensure that the public counts and the card counts are zero. If the light in the polls ready to open  
315 box on the officer's control panel is in any other but the top position prior to the inspector pressing the open polls button,  
316 stop the procedure and contact the Department of Elections. The machine cannot be used. If, during the opening of the polls  
317 procedure, the paper tape shows "error all counters not zero," stop the procedure and contact the Department of Elections.  
318 The machine cannot be used. At the conclusion of the open polls procedure for each voting machine assigned to the election

319 district, each election officer signs the paper tape. After the last election officer signs the paper tape, the inspector will close  
320 the write-in window.

321 Section 24. Amend § 4932, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
322 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

323 § 4932. Location of election officers within voting room; location and care of voting ~~machine~~; device.

324 ~~The election officer attending the machine shall inspect its face after each voter has cast a vote to make certain the~~  
325 ~~ballots on the face of the machine are in proper condition and that the machine has not been harmed in any way. If it shall~~  
326 ~~become necessary for a representative of the Department to open the printer door or to open the printer door and remove the~~  
327 ~~ballot cover and/or ballot in order to repair a voting machine that cannot be repaired otherwise, a statement to that effect~~  
328 ~~shall be entered on the reverse side of each copy of the voting machine certificate. The statement shall be signed by the~~  
329 ~~inspector and the departmental representative. Upon completion of the repair, the inspector shall close and seal the printer~~  
330 ~~door and record the new seal number on the reverse side of the voting machine certificate. [Repealed.]~~

331 Section 25. Amend § 4972, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
332 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

333 § 4972. Rules regarding what constitutes a legal vote.

334 (a) Votes cast on a ~~direct recording electronic voting machine shall be considered~~ device are legal votes once the  
335 voter has taken the necessary action or actions to cast a ballot. A voter who has cast a ballot on a ~~direct recording electronic~~  
336 ~~voting machine shall~~ device may not be permitted to cast a second ballot under any circumstances. The paper ballot  
337 reflecting the voter's choices is the legal ballot of record.

338 (b) Votes cast at any election on voter-marked paper ballots ~~shall~~ must be counted for whom ~~they~~ the votes are  
339 intended as far as can be ascertained by the marks on the ballot. The following rules ~~shall~~ must be observed in determining  
340 those votes on paper ballots that ~~shall~~ must be counted:

341 (1) The voter shall mark the ballot for the voter's selections ~~by placing a distinct mark in the box at the right of~~  
342 ~~the name of the candidate and or response to a question for which the voter wants to vote; as instructed.~~

343 (2) Where a voter indicates the voter's own selections in a manner not in accordance with paragraph (b)(1) of  
344 this section, the election officers shall attempt to determine from the marks on the ballot the candidate or response that  
345 the voter intended to ~~select~~; select.

346 (3) If it is not possible to determine a voter's choice for an office or response to a question, the ballot ~~shall~~  
347 may not be counted for that office or question but ~~shall~~ must be counted for all other offices and questions on the ballot  
348 where the voter's intention can be ~~determined~~; determined.

349 (4) A voter may only vote for 2 or more choices for any office or question when specifically instructed on the  
350 ballot that it is ~~allowable~~; allowable.

351 (5) Where a voter is permitted to make more than 1 choice for candidates and or responses to a question, the  
352 voter may make fewer than the allowable number of ~~choices~~; choices.

353 (6) If a ballot is marked for more names or responses than are permitted, it ~~shall~~ must not be counted for that  
354 office or question, but it ~~shall~~ must be counted for all other offices or questions on the ballot in accordance with ~~these~~  
355 ~~rules~~; the rules under this section.

356 (7) If a ballot has been defaced or torn so that it is impossible to determine the voter's choice for 1 or more  
357 offices or questions, it ~~shall~~ must not be counted for ~~such~~ the offices or questions but ~~shall~~ must be counted for all other  
358 offices and questions where the voter's choice or choices can be ~~determined~~; determined.

359 (8) The misspelled, ~~incomplete~~ incomplete, or minor variation of the name of a declared write-in candidate for  
360 an office ~~shall~~ must be counted if the name as written bears a reasonable resemblance to the declared candidate's name  
361 and no other declared write-in candidate for the office has a name so similar to the name as written as to leave a  
362 reasonable doubt as to the voter's intention. Additionally, writing in the last name of a declared write-in candidate ~~shall~~  
363 ~~constitute~~ constitutes a valid vote unless there are 2 or more candidates for that office with the same last ~~name~~; and  
364 name.

365 (9) Writing in the name of either candidate for President or ~~Vice President~~ shall constitute Vice President  
366 constitutes a valid vote for the slate.

367 Section 26. Amend § 4975, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
368 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

369 § 4975. Removing the results from the voting ~~machine~~ device or ~~machines~~ devices and dispatching the ~~memory~~  
370 ~~cartridge or cartridges to the zone reporting station~~; voted paper ballots in a secured container and the media containing the  
371 election results to the Department.

372 (a)(1) After the polls have closed and the last voter has finished voting and exited the polling place, the inspector  
373 shall ~~verify that each voting machine has been deactivated~~; close and secure each voting device as instructed and complete  
374 the required documentation. ~~The election officers shall then copy the protective counter number from each voting machine~~  
375 ~~assigned to the election district onto section 3 of each of the voting machine certificate or certificates~~.

376 (2) After the polls have closed, the election officers shall produce a report of the write-in votes.

377 (b) After the polls have been closed on a voting machine, the officers shall remove the paper tape containing the  
378 results and the memory cartridge from the voting machine. closed, the election officers shall remove the ballot container  
379 and the media containing the election results from each voting device and deliver them to the Department as instructed.

380 (c) After the memory cartridge or cartridges have been removed from each voting machine assigned to the election  
381 district, the inspector shall place said memory cartridge or cartridges into the envelope designated for the memory cartridge  
382 or cartridges and seal the envelope. The inspector shall give the envelope to the election officer assigned to deliver the  
383 memory cartridge or cartridges to the zone reporting station. The inspector shall then enter the date and time in section 2 of  
384 each of the voting machine certificates and direct the said election officer to sign section 2 of each of the voting machine  
385 certificates. The inspector shall then dispatch the said election officer with the envelope containing the memory cartridge or  
386 cartridges to the zone reporting station listed on the envelope containing the memory cartridge or cartridges. The election  
387 officer assigned to take the memory cartridge or cartridges to the zone reporting station shall depart the polling place  
388 immediately and go directly to the zone reporting station listed on the envelope containing the memory cartridge or  
389 cartridges. Upon arriving at the said zone reporting station, the said election officer shall give the envelope to a designated  
390 representative of the State Election Commissioner. [Repealed.]

391 (d) After the election officer assigned to deliver the memory cartridge or cartridges to the zone reporting station  
392 has departed the polling place, each remaining election officer shall sign each copy of every paper tape removed from a  
393 voting machine assigned to the election district. [Repealed.]

394 (e) After every copy of every paper tape has been signed, the inspector will separate the copies of each tape by  
395 cutting at the "cut here" line. The first copy of each paper tape (the copy with the zero count certification) shall be placed  
396 into the Prothonotary envelope and the first extra copy of each tape shall be placed into the Department of Elections  
397 envelope. [Repealed.]

398 Section 27. Amend § 4976, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
399 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

400 § 4976. Counting of write-in votes.

401 (a) After the paper tapes have been separated and placed in envelopes, the inspector shall remove the 1st copy  
402 paper tape or tapes (with zero count certification) from the Prothonotary envelope.

403 (b) The inspector shall then proceed to read distinctly each office voted for, starting from the top of each paper  
404 tape, and the names of the persons for whom votes were cast. If the name of the person voted for is not clear, the inspector  
405 and 2 judges shall examine the paper roll and determine, by majority vote, if necessary, the name to be entered on the write-

406 in vote tally sheet. The judge of the opposite political party shall stand or sit with the inspector while the inspector reads off  
407 the write-in votes to verify the votes cast.

408 (e) ~~Two clerks shall account on separate Write-in Vote Tally Sheets for each write-in vote for an office for a~~  
409 ~~candidate on the ballot for that office, a declared write-in candidate for the office or for all other write-in votes for the office~~  
410 ~~as "Other Write-in Candidates."~~

411 (d) ~~After the counting is completed, the clerks shall compare their tallies and add up the number of votes cast for~~  
412 ~~each person in the presence of the inspector and judges. They shall then announce the names of the persons voted for and~~  
413 ~~the total number of votes cast for each person. The first copy paper tape (with zero count certification) from each voting~~  
414 ~~machine assigned to the election district shall be placed in the envelope and shall be delivered to the Prothonotary.~~  
415 [Repealed.]

416 Section 28. Amend § 4978, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
417 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

418 § 4978. Securing the voting ~~machine, device,~~ voting machine certificates ~~device certificates,~~ and tally sheets.

419 (a) ~~After the write-in votes have been tallied, the inspector shall close the printer door and apply a seal to the~~  
420 ~~printer door for each voting machine assigned to the election district. The inspector shall record the seal number on each of~~  
421 ~~the voting machine certificates.~~

422 (b) ~~After placing the curtain, absentee entry device and any other materials designated by the Department in the~~  
423 ~~base of the voting machine, the inspector shall fold up the voting machine and apply a seal to the voting machine case. The~~  
424 ~~inspector shall record the seal number on each of the voting machine certificates. The inspector shall repeat this procedure~~  
425 ~~for each voting machine assigned to the election district.~~

426 (c) ~~The election officers present shall sign all copies of the write-in vote tally sheets and section 3 of the voting~~  
427 ~~machine certificates.~~

428 (d) ~~The inspector shall place 1 copy of the voting machine certificate and write-in vote tally sheet in the envelope~~  
429 ~~to be delivered to the Prothonotary and 1 copy of each of the said documents in the envelope to be delivered to the~~  
430 ~~Department of Elections immediately following the closing of the polling place. [Repealed.]~~

431 Section 29. Amend § 4979, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
432 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

433 § 4979. Delivery of certificates, election records and supplies, voting ~~machines~~ devices, and absentee ballot boxes.

434 (a) ~~After the close of the election, the inspector shall deliver an envelope containing the first copy of the paper tape~~  
435 ~~(with "zero count" certification) from each voting machine in the election district, 1 copy of the voting machine certificate,~~

436 1 copy of the write-in vote tally sheet, if any, to the Prothonotary of the Superior Court for that inspector's county. The  
437 Prothonotary shall, on the second day following the election at 10 a.m. present said envelope to the Court. If the inspector  
438 of any election district dies or is prevented by sickness or accident from delivering the above-mentioned items to the  
439 Prothonotary the night of election day, the Prothonotary and/or the Department shall obtain the envelope from that  
440 inspector as soon as practical. The same shall apply to all envelopes, documents, poll lists, election records and supplies  
441 that the inspector is obligated to return to the Department following the close of the polls.

442 (b) At the end of the day of election, each inspector shall deliver to the office of the department of elections of the  
443 inspector's county these items:

444 (1) An envelope containing 1 copy of the paper tape with results from each voting machine in the election  
445 district, 1 copy of the voting machine certificate and 1 copy of the write-in vote tally sheet;

446 (2) Poll list;

447 (3) Oaths (or affirmations) signed by the election officers;

448 (4) The book, or books, of original permanent registration records provided as the Election District Record;

449 (5) All voter signature cards provided by the department;

450 (6) All tally sheets;

451 (7) All other supplies provided by the department, including the flag of the United States of America and the  
452 polling place flag.

453 (c) All certificates, poll lists, oaths (or affirmations), voter signature cards, tally sheets and other records of the  
454 election shall be filed in the department of elections for not less than 1 year following the election and shall be public  
455 records and, as such, admissible in evidence. [Repealed.]

456 Section 30. Amend § 4980, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
457 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

458 § 4980. Return and custody of voting ~~machines and keys~~: devices, media containing election results, and ballot  
459 container.

460 (a) Immediately after the election, and within the 2 days immediately following the day of election, ~~the voting~~  
461 ~~machines and absentee ballot boxes shall~~ all voting materials, including the voting devices, media containing the election  
462 results, and secured containers of voted paper ballots, must be stored in some a safe and secure place provided by the  
463 ~~department of elections.~~ Department. While the board of canvass is conducting its canvass of the vote, ~~the machines and~~  
464 ~~ballot boxes shall~~ all voting materials must be in the custody of the Prothonotary. While in the Prothonotary's custody, ~~the~~



465 voting machines and the absentee ballot boxes the voting materials may be opened and examined by order of the board of  
466 canvass or any other court of competent jurisdiction.

467 (b) After the board of canvass has completed its canvass of the vote, the Prothonotary shall turn custody of the  
468 ~~voting machine and absentee ballot boxes over to the department of elections.~~ the voting materials over to the Department.  
469 ~~The department~~ Department shall leave the ~~ballot boxes~~ voted paper ballots and all documentation extracted from the media  
470 containing the election results undisturbed and locked ~~until the following February 1.~~ for 22 months after the day of the  
471 election. During this period, the ~~ballot boxes may be opened for inspection~~ voted paper ballots and all documentation  
472 extracted from the media containing the election results may be inspected by any duly authorized member or agent of the  
473 ~~General Assembly or Assembly,~~ the Attorney ~~General.~~ General, or the Department for the purpose of conducting an audit  
474 under § 5012A of this title. ~~After February 1 the department shall be free to unlock, clean out, inspect and repair any~~  
475 ~~absentee ballot box.~~

476 Section 31. Amend § 4981, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
477 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

478 § 4981. Duties of ~~department of elections~~ Department and State Election Commissioner following an election.

479 (a) Immediately following an election, the ~~State Election Commissioner shall take each voter signature card and~~  
480 ~~through electronic means, note that the voter participated in the election on the election district record.~~ Department shall  
481 upload all updated voter history from the electronic poll books to the State's voter registration system.

482 (b) ~~Voter signature cards and all other forms and records not of a permanent nature, which are used in the conduct~~  
483 ~~of an election, shall be retained by the department for not less than 1 year following the election. The Commissioner may~~  
484 ~~require that the department send the voter signature cards used in the election to the Commissioner to carry out the~~  
485 ~~Commissioner's own duties under this section. In such event, the Commissioner shall return the voter signature cards to the~~  
486 ~~department not more than 6 months following their delivery to the Commissioner.~~ [Repealed.]

487 Section 32. Amend § 4991, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
488 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

489 § 4991. Process.

490 (a) The person making a complaint under this subchapter shall submit the complaint to the State Election  
491 ~~Commissioner or the Department.~~ Commissioner. The complaint shall must be in writing, ~~notarized~~ notarized, and signed  
492 and sworn to by the person making the complaint.

493 (b) ~~If the a~~ Department office receives ~~such~~ a complaint, it shall forward it to the State Election Commissioner on  
494 the same business day that it is received.

495 Section 33. Amend Title 15 of the Delaware Code by deleting Chapter 50 in its entirety.

496 Section 34. Amend § 5000A, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
497 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

498 § 5000A. ~~Use in lieu of voting machines.~~ Electronic voting system use.

499 In any general, ~~special~~ special, or primary elections, an electronic voting system ~~may alternatively be used in lieu~~  
500 ~~of a voting machine as required by Chapter 50 of this title so long as the voting system complies~~ must be used and must  
501 comply with the requirements of this chapter.

502 Section 35. Amend § 5001A, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
503 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

504 § 5001A. Requirements.

505 (a) ~~Any~~ An electronic voting system may be adopted, ~~purchased~~ purchased, or used ~~which shall be so constructed~~  
506 ~~as to fulfill if it meets all of~~ the following requirements:

507 (1) Each voting device ~~shall~~ must have a serial number permanently attached to or stamped to the ~~device;~~  
508 device.

509 (2) ~~It shall secure~~ Secure to the voter secrecy in the act of voting for or against as many questions as may be  
510 ~~submitted;~~ submitted.

511 (3) ~~It shall permit~~ Permit the voter to vote for the candidates of 1 or more parties, or to write in the name or  
512 candidate of the voter's choice for any ~~office;~~ office.

513 (4) ~~It shall permit~~ Permit the voter to vote for as many persons for an office as the voter is lawfully entitled to  
514 vote for, and the automatic tabulating equipment used in such electronic voting systems shall reject choices recorded  
515 on any ballot card or any voting device if the number of such choices exceeds the number to which a voter is ~~entitled;~~  
516 entitled.

517 (5) ~~It shall prevent~~ Prevent the voter from voting for the same person more than once for the same ~~office;~~  
518 office.

519 (6) ~~It shall permit~~ Permit the voter to vote for or against any question the voter may have the right to vote  
520 upon, but no ~~other;~~ other.

521 (7) ~~It shall permit~~ Permit each voter in primary elections to vote only for the candidates of the party with  
522 which the voter has declared that voter's own affiliation, and preclude the voter from voting for any candidate seeking  
523 nomination by any other political ~~party;~~ party.

524 (8) ~~It shall correctly~~ Correctly record and accurately count all votes cast for any and all candidates of a  
525 political party, and for or against any and all questions, and correctly record the names of all candidates written in by  
526 ~~votes; votes.~~

527 (9) ~~It shall be~~ Be provided with means for sealing the vote recording devices to prevent its use and to prevent  
528 tampering with ballot labels, both before and after the polls are open or before the operation of the vote recording  
529 device for any election is begun and immediately after the polls are closed or after the operation of the vote recording  
530 device for an election is ~~completed;~~ completed.

531 (10) ~~If individual paper ballots are used, the paper ballot shall include a serialized stub number for each ballot~~  
532 ~~issued to a voter to be retained by the poll worker which will show at all times during any election a total number of~~  
533 ~~persons who have voted.~~ [Repealed.]

534 (11) ~~It shall be~~ Be so equipped that it shall prevent the voter from voting for all the candidates of 1 party by  
535 the use of a single mark, punch or other action; however, it shall be provided with a device or method for each party,  
536 for voting for all presidential electors of that party by 1 mark, punch or other action.

537 (b) ~~Every voting device or booth shall be provided with a means of providing sufficient light to enable voters~~  
538 ~~while in the voting booth to read the ballots or ballot labels.~~ All voting devices used in any election shall must be provided  
539 with side curtains and front shield to ~~insure~~ ensure that no person can see or know for whom any voter has voted or is  
540 voting.

541 (c) A voting device or system purchased by the State must be certified by the United States Election Assistance  
542 Commission, or designated federal authority, as meeting or exceeding the voluntary voting systems standards or guidelines  
543 as promulgated by the United States Election Assistance Commission, or designated federal authority, before delivery to  
544 and acceptance by the State.

545 (d) The Department shall prepare a plan that enables a voter to cast a ballot if every voting device in the polling  
546 place fails and consequently a voter is unable to vote on a voting device in the voter's polling place.

547 Section 36. Amend § 5004A, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
548 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

549 § 5004A. Number of voting devices per election district.

550 (a) In general elections, ~~the polling place for every election district shall be supplied~~ the Department shall supply  
551 each polling place with at least 1 voting device for every ~~600~~ 650 registered voters or majority fraction thereof.

552 (b) In primary and special elections, ~~the polling place for every primary voting district or election district shall be~~  
553 ~~provided the Department shall supply each polling place~~ with at least 1 voting ~~maehine~~ device for every 750 800 registered  
554 voters or majority fraction thereof.

555 Section 37. Amend § 5005A, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
556 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

557 § 5005A. Printing of ballots; distribution of ballots.

558 (a) ~~Ballots shall be printed in black ink on white material of such size as will fit the ballot frame used for all~~  
559 ~~elections and shall be secured in the ballot frame to make tampering or removal difficult. [Repealed.]~~

560 (b)(1) ~~The party emblem which has been duly adopted by such party in accordance with law and the party name or~~  
561 ~~other designation for each political party represented on the voting device shall appear on the ballot if space and layout~~  
562 ~~permits. The party emblem which has been duly adopted by a party in accordance with law and the party name or other~~  
563 designation for each political party represented on the device must appear on the ballot.

564 (2) The titles of offices may be arranged horizontally, with the names of candidates for an office arranged  
565 vertically under the title of the office, or the titles of offices may be arranged vertically, with the names of candidates  
566 for an office arranged horizontally opposite the title of the office, each office to occupy as many columns or rows on  
567 the voting device as the number of candidates to be elected to that office.

568 (3) Except as otherwise provided under this chapter, the names of all candidates nominated by a party for an  
569 office must always appear in the row or column containing generally the names of candidates nominated by the party  
570 for other offices.

571 Section 38. Amend § 5006A, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
572 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

573 § 5006A. Number of official ballots to be furnished.

574 ~~If required by the voting system, the department shall provide and furnish 110 official ballots per 100 registered~~  
575 ~~voters. [Repealed.]~~

576 Section 39. Amend § 5007A, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
577 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

578 § 5007A. Substitute ballots.

579 ~~If the official ballots for an election district are not delivered in time for use on election day or after delivery shall~~  
580 ~~be lost, destroyed or stolen, the department shall cause other ballots to be prepared, printed or written as nearly as may be of~~

581 the form and description of the official ballots, and the department shall cause the ballots so substituted to be used at the  
582 election in the same manner, as nearly as may be, as the official ballots would have been. [Repealed.]

583 Section 40. Amend § 5008A, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
584 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

585 § 5008A. Preparation of voting devices.

586 (a)(1) ~~The department of elections~~ Department shall cause sufficient voting devices to be delivered to the proper  
587 polling places ~~prior to~~ before the time appointed for the election officers to report for duty.

588 (2) The Department shall certify that each voting device to be used in an election has been properly prepared  
589 and ~~inspected.~~ inspected by doing all of the following before each primary and general election:

590 a. Confirming that the most recent federally-approved software is installed.

591 b. Checking accuracy by doing the following:

592 1. Simulating voting by entering sample votes on the voting device.

593 2. Counting by hand the votes on each paper ballot from the voting device and comparing the paper  
594 ballot totals to the totals kept by the voting device electronically

595 (b) The Department shall mail written notices to the State Chairperson of each party with candidates listed on the  
596 ballot, stating the time and place at which the voting device will be inspected. The State Chairperson of each such political  
597 party may designate ~~one~~ 1 representative to be present during the inspection.

598 (c) ~~The board of elections~~ Department shall designate at least 2 representatives of opposite political affiliation,  
599 other than the person preparing the ~~devices;~~ voting devices, to do all of the following:

600 (1) ~~To inspect each device to make certain it is in good working order and that the proper ballot labels have~~  
601 ~~been placed in it;~~ Certify the numbers on the voting devices and the election districts for which they are designated.

602 (2) ~~To examine and/or test each voting position for proper registration;~~ Certify that all voting devices are in  
603 proper working condition.

604 (3) ~~To certify such inspections and testing upon a record provided by the department.~~ Certify that the voting  
605 devices are properly sealed.

606 (d) ~~The Department shall cause all ballot cards, if used by the voting system, to be sealed in a metal transfer carrier~~  
607 ~~and the seal number recorded. Two representatives of the Board of Elections, of opposite political affiliation, shall examine~~  
608 ~~each voting device and insure that each voting device is sealed with the numbered seal as required. They shall:~~

609 (1) ~~Certify the numbers on the voting devices and the election districts for which they are designated;~~

610 (2) ~~Certify that all voting devices are in proper working condition;~~

611 (3) Certify that the voting devices are properly sealed; and

612 (4) Certify that the correct ballot has been properly secured in the voting device. [Repealed.]

613 (e) The Department shall ~~have the automatic tabulating equipment used in mark sense or punch mark tabulation~~  
614 ~~tested~~ test all voting systems to ascertain that ~~it~~ the voting systems will accurately count the votes cast for all offices and on  
615 all questions. Public notice of the time and place of the test ~~shall~~ of both the voting device system and the absentee ballot  
616 system must be published and a test must be conducted within ~~5~~ 10 days ~~of~~ before the election. ~~The tabulating equipment~~  
617 ~~shall pass the same test at the conclusion of the count before the election returns are approved. Two representatives of the~~  
618 ~~Board of Elections, of opposite political affiliation, shall certify that this has been done.~~

619 (f) The certification required by this section ~~shall be~~ is a public record ~~in the office of the department of elections.~~  
620 and must be available at the Department.

621 (g) The ~~department~~ Department shall require that all persons with custody of the voting devices, either for delivery  
622 or storage before and after the election, shall ~~insure~~ ensure the voting devices' safety and protection.

623 Section 41. Amend § 5010A, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
624 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

625 § 5010A. Inoperative voting devices.

626 If during the conduct of an election a ~~vote recording~~ voting device becomes inoperative, the election officers shall  
627 seal it in such manner as to prevent further voting thereon. The ~~department~~ Department shall maintain and hold in readiness  
628 a reasonable number of extra voting devices to be supplied to election districts where a voting device has become  
629 inoperative, and the ~~department~~ Department shall take reasonable steps to ~~insure~~ ensure rapid delivery in such event.

630 Section 42. Amend § 5011A, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
631 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

632 § 5011A. Voting device curtains; absentee voting.

633 ~~Side curtains on all voting devices shall be securely fastened before being used in any election. An electronic~~  
634 ~~voting system providing a method of voting absentee utilizing a ballot card may be used for all absentee voting providing it~~  
635 ~~meets all requirements of the law. [Repealed.]~~

636 Section 43. Amend § 5012A, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
637 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

638 § 5012A. Audits; audit discrepancy procedure.

639 (a) For purposes of this section, "audit" means counting by hand the votes on each paper ballot from a voting  
640 device and comparing the paper ballot totals to the totals kept by the voting device electronically.

641 (b) Within 48 hours of the certification of the results of the primary and general elections, and school board  
642 elections conducted under Title 14, the Department shall audit the results of 1 randomly selected voting device in each  
643 county and 1 randomly selected election district in the City of Wilmington.

644 (c) Within 60 days of the certification of the results of the primary and general elections, and school board  
645 elections conducted under Title 14, the Department shall conduct an audit of all such elections, as follows:

646 (1) The Department shall audit all results of 1 randomly selected election district in each county and 1  
647 randomly selected election district in the City of Wilmington. An election district selected for audit under this  
648 paragraph (c)(1) of this section must be different than the election districts selected under subsection (b) or paragraph  
649 (c)(2) of this section.

650 (2) The Department shall audit the results of 1 randomly selected election district in each county and 1  
651 randomly selected election district in the City of Wilmington in 1 randomly selected statewide race. An election district  
652 selected for audit under this paragraph (c)(2) of this section must be different than the election districts selected under  
653 subsection (b) or paragraph (c)(1) of this section.

654 (d) The Department shall conduct an audit under this section in public.

655 (e) Within 60 days of an audit under this section, the Department shall do all of the following:

656 (1) Publish a report containing the results of the audit conducted under this section.

657 (2) Post the report on the Department's website.

658 (f) The Department shall promulgate regulations to govern the procedure to be used if an audit reveals a  
659 discrepancy, including all of the following:

660 (1) The thresholds that trigger the Department or others to take a specific action.

661 (2) The specific actions to be taken by the Department or others once a threshold is triggered.

662 (3) The corrective actions that must be taken by the Department or others to avoid the discrepancy in the  
663 future.

664 Section 44. Amend § 5503, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
665 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

666 § 5503. Request for ballot; statements for absentee ballots; delivery of absentee ballots.

667 (a) An elector desiring to vote by absentee ballot in an election for which the elector is a qualified elector may  
668 request an absentee ballot from the Department by filing a handwritten or electronically prepared statement with the  
669 ~~department~~ Department no later than 12:00 noon the day before the election.

670 Section 45. Amend § 5508, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
671 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

672 § 5508. Time limit for return of ballot; late ballots.

673 (b) For an absentee ballot to be counted ~~pursuant to~~ under this chapter, an elector voting by absentee ballot shall  
674 return the elector marked ballot to the Department office of the county in which the voter resides before the polls close on  
675 the day of the election.

676 Section 46. Amend § 5523, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
677 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

678 § 5523. Logic and accuracy testing of absentee ballot tabulating equipment; authority of the State Election  
679 Commissioner.

680 (a) The State Election Commissioner, in consultation with the ~~Department,~~ Department offices, shall promulgate  
681 rules and regulations relating to logic and accuracy testing of absentee ballot tabulating machines.

682 Section 47. Amend § 5525, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
683 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

684 § 5525. Electronic delivery of absentee ballots.

685 (f) The State Election Commissioner, in collaboration with the ~~Department,~~ Department offices, shall establish  
686 procedures for electronically delivering an absentee ~~ballots~~ ballot to ~~the voters~~ a voter with instructions for the ~~voters~~ voter  
687 to follow in voting and electronically returning ~~their ballots~~ the voter's ballot to the ~~respective department of elections.~~  
688 Department office in the county in which the voter resides.

689 Section 48. Amend § 5526, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
690 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

691 § 5526. System for voters to determine status of their absentee ballots.

692 The State Election Commissioner, in collaboration with the ~~Department,~~ Department offices, shall establish a free  
693 access system accessible via the ~~internet~~ Internet through which a person who applied for an absentee ballot can determine  
694 whether or not the ballot application was received, when the ballot was transmitted, when the voted ballot was received by  
695 the Department, and whether or not the ballot was counted.

696 Section 49. Amend § 5527, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
697 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

698 § 5527. Authority to implement provisions of the Uniformed and Overseas Citizens Absentee Voters Act.



699 The State Election Commissioner, in collaboration with the ~~Department,~~ Department offices, shall implement  
700 those provisions of the Uniformed and Overseas Citizens Absentee Voters Act (52 U.S.C. § 20301 et seq.) not specifically  
701 mandated by this chapter.

702 Section 50. Amend § 5702, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
703 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

704 § 5702. Duties of Court.

705 (e) ~~In the event that~~ If the number of votes separating a candidate and the closest opposing candidate in an election  
706 for State Senator, State ~~Representative~~ Representative, or county office is less than 1,000 votes or 1/2 of ~~4 percent~~ 1% of all  
707 votes cast for the 2 candidates, whichever is less, the Court shall recount the ~~absentee~~-ballots cast in that election at State  
708 expense.

709 Section 51. Amend § 7103, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
710 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

711 § 7103. Candidates.

712 (a) The county committee for each political party eligible to place candidates on the general election ballot for the  
713 most recent past general election may nominate a candidate for the special election by submitting a nomination to the  
714 Department office conducting the special election no later than 25 days ~~prior to~~ before the date of the special election. If the  
715 legislative district up for election includes the area of more than 1 county, the county committees for each county shall  
716 agree on 1 candidate and the committee for the county where the candidate resides shall submit the nomination to the  
717 ~~Department.~~ Department office conducting the special election.

718 (b) A person wishing to run as an unaffiliated candidate who is eligible to hold the office up for election must file  
719 a petition in support of that person's own candidacy containing the signatures of at least 1% of all voters who are registered  
720 in the legislative district as of the first day of the month preceding the month during which the vacancy was created. ~~Such~~  
721 The person must file the petition with the Department office conducting the special election no later than 25 days ~~prior to~~  
722 before the day of the special election.

723 Section 52. Amend § 7525, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
724 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

725 § 7525 Ballots.

726 The names of the candidates for the Mayor, ~~Council~~ Council, and other officers of the City of Wilmington ~~shall~~  
727 must be printed on the single ballot as prescribed by § 4501 of this title and to meet the requirements of §§ ~~5001-5011~~ §§  
728 5000A through 5012A of this title.

729 Section 53. Amend § 7528, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
730 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

731 § 7528 General provisions.

732 All of the provisions of this title pertaining to elections, including registration of voters, Chapters 11, 13, 17, 19,  
733 20, 21, and 23, primary elections and nomination of candidates, Chapters 31 and 33, general elections, Chapters 41, 45, 47,  
734 49, 51, 53, 55, and 57, as well as ~~Chapter 50~~ Chapter 50A of this title, ~~shall be~~ are applicable to the holding of elections in  
735 accordance with this subchapter.

736 Section 54. Amend § 7550, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
737 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

738 § 7550. General.

739 (j) The State Election Commissioner, in collaboration with the Departments of ~~Elections~~, Elections county offices,  
740 shall promulgate the documents, ~~forms~~ forms, and envelopes required by subchapters IV and V of this chapter.

741 (k) A municipality shall contract with the Department of ~~Elections~~ office in the county where the municipality is  
742 located to conduct an election to elect members of the municipality's government at least 60 days prior to the date of the  
743 election.

744 (n) The State Election ~~Commissioner~~ Commissioner, in ~~the~~ collaboration with the ~~departments of elections~~  
745 Department offices, shall establish reasonable fees to cover the costs of services provided to municipalities. The initial  
746 schedule of fees ~~shall~~ must be established and published no later than December 31, 2010. The schedule ~~shall~~ must be  
747 reviewed, modified as ~~necessary~~ necessary, and published anew no later than December 31 in every odd-numbered year.

748 Section 55. Amend § 7551, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
749 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

750 § 7551. Boards of Election; appointment, authority.

751 (k) A municipality shall notify the State Election Commissioner ~~and the Department of Elections~~ of the members  
752 of its Board of Elections when such members are installed.

753 Section 56. Amend § 7555, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
754 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

755 § 7555. Candidates; eligibility; declaration of candidacy.

756 (k) The State Election Commissioner shall prepare a package of Municipal Candidate Forms required by this  
757 section and instructions for completing and filing the forms. The Commissioner shall provide each municipality copies of  
758 the Municipal Candidate Forms package and publish the package on the State Election Commissioner's website.

759 Municipalities and the ~~Departments of Elections~~ Department offices shall publish the Municipal Candidate Forms package  
760 on their websites, should such websites exist. Municipalities shall maintain a sufficient supply of Municipal Candidate  
761 Forms packages to meet demand.

762 (l) A municipality shall submit the names of candidates for each office up for election to the Department of  
763 ~~Elections~~ office conducting the municipality's election no later than 1 business day following the filing deadlines for the  
764 elected position.

765 Section 57. Amend § 7558, Title 15 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and  
766 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

767 § 7558. Election results; recounts; contests.

768 (c) The municipal Board of Elections shall recount the ~~absentee~~ ballots if the difference between the top 2  
769 candidates is 1/2 of 1% or less than the total votes cast for the office. Where electors vote for more than 1 candidate for an  
770 office, the municipal Board of Elections shall recount ~~absentee~~ the ballots if the difference between the last candidate  
771 elected and the next closest candidate is 1/2 of 1% or less than the total votes cast for the office.

772 Section 58. Section 43 of this Act takes effect on January 1, 2020. The remainder of this Act takes effect upon  
773 enactment.

#### SYNOPSIS

This Act makes necessary changes to Delaware's election laws based on the State's purchase of new voting devices and establishes auditing requirements for the voting devices. The new voting devices will function differently than the existing voting devices and so election law must be updated to conform the law. The new voting devices allow each voter to view a paper ballot with the voter's selections under glass for the voter to approve before pressing the final button to vote.

This Act requires the Department of Elections ("Department") to audit the results of primary, general, and school board elections and establishes the procedure to be used by the Department. This Act also requires the Department to adopt regulations to govern the procedure to be used if an audit reveals a discrepancy.

This Act also makes technical corrections to conform existing law to the standards of the Delaware Legislative Drafting Manual.

Author: Senator Townsend